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TEXAS ALCOHOLIC BEVERA GE § BEFORE IE TEXA 
COMMISSIO § 

§ 
vs . § 

§ 
LETICIA . ORMA MUNO Z § 
D/B/A EL JARD BILLIARDS & GRILLS § ALCOHOLIC 
PERMITILICENSE NO(s). MB671874, LB & § 
PE § 
DALLAS COUN1 Y, TEXAS § 
(SO AR DOCKET 0.458-09-2194) § B VERA GE CO ISSIO 

ORDER 1 .;; 
CAME ON FOR CO SIDERATIO r1liKday O~, 2010, the above-

styled and numbered cause. 

Aft r proper notice was given, this case was heard by Administrative Law Judge Richard R. 
Wilfon . The hearing on place or manner and common nuisance allegation convened on April 27, 
28 and 29, 2009 and August 17, 18, and 19, 2009. Additional alleged violations specific to the 
Respondent were heard on October 28, 2009. The record closed on December 3D, 2009. The 
Administrative Law Judge made and filed a Proposal For Deci ion containin g Findin s of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law on the 9th day of February , 2010. The Proposal or Decision was prop rly 
served on all parties who were given an opportunity to file Exceptions and Repl ies as part of the 
record herein. Respondent' s Attorney filed exceptions to the Proposal or Decision on ' ebruary 23. 
2010. The Adm inistrative Law Judge filed a reply to Respondent 's exceptions on March 8, 2010, 
and recot ends no changes to the ProposaJ For Decision. 

The Assistant Administrator of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission, after review and 
due consideration of the Proposal for D eision and Exhibits, adopts the Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law of the Administrative Law Judge, which are contained in the Proposal For 
Decision and incorporates those Findings of Fact and Conc lusions of Law into this Order, as i such 
were fully set out and separately stated herein. AJl Propos ed Findin gs of Fact and Conclusion of 
Law, submitted by any party, which are not spec ifically adopted herein, are denied. 

IT IS THEREFO RE ORDERED, by the Assistant Administrator of the Texas Alco holic 
Beverage Commission, pursuant to Subchapter B of Chapter 5 of the exas AlcohoJic Beverage 
Code and 16 TAC §3 1.1, of the Comm ission Rules , that your pennit(s and/or Ii ense(s) is hereby 
CANC ELLED . 

This Order will become final and enforceable on the ~~day 0 ¥ , 2010, 
unless a Motion for Rehearing is fil ed before tha t date. 

By copy of this Order, service sha ll be made upon all parties by in the mann er indicated 
below. 



SIGN D this the dday of r----~~--, 2010, at Austin, Tex s. 

Sherry K-Coo , Assistant Administrator 
Texas Alcoh c Bev rage Co ission 

EEHIcb 

Honorable Judge Richard R. Wilfong 
Administ ive Law J dge 
State Office ofAdministrative Hearings 
VIA FACSIMILE: (512) 475-4994 

Larry Finstrom 
Attorney For Respondent 
1201 Elm Street, Suit 2510 
Dallas, TX 75270 
VIA FACSIMILE: (214)7 8-8379 

Leticia Nom a Munoz 
Re pondent 
d/b/a El Jardin Billiards & Grills 
2900 Walnut Hill Lane, Ste.l 04 
DaJlas, TX 7 229 
VIA REGULAR MAIL 

Emily E. Helm 
Attorney For P titio cr 
TABC Legal Sectio n 

Licen sing Division 

b q " c\s District Office 
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TE XAS ALCOHO LJC n \ [ RAGE 
CO) O n SION 

Petitioner 

§ 
§ 
§ 

B f O RE THE STAT OFFIC E 

§ 
v. § 

OF 
LETICIA ! ·OR.\01 . I I OZ D/B/A 
JARDIN BlLLI RD & GRILL 

L § 

rr. C CASE . '0 .580071,580867, 
582076, ND 582366)t § 

Respe dent § ADMINIS ATIVE HEARINGS 

PR P At OR DE ISIO 

The staffof the Texas Alcoholic Beverage: Commission (StaffITABClPetitioner) requested 

that the mixed beverage, mixed beverage late hours, and beverage cartage permi ts ofLeticia Norma 

Munoz d/b/a EI Jardin Billiards & Grill (EI Jardin/Respondent), located at 2900 Walnut Hill Lane, 

Suite 104, in Dallas. Texas, be cancelled based on several vi lations of the Texas Alcoholic 

Beverage Code (Code) alleged to have occurred between September 20, 2007, and December 13, 

2008. Respondent denied the allegation . TIle Administrative Law Jud ge (AU) finds that Staff 

proved the contested allegations specific to EI Jardin as e. plained in detail below. Accordingly, the 

AU recommends that Respondent's permits be cancelled. 

I. PROCEDUR) L HISTORY Ai 'D J RJ DICTIO 

There are no contested issues of notice or jurisdiction, and those matters are set out in the 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law without further discuss ion here. 

The hearing in this matter relating to alleged violations of §§ 11.61(b)(7) and 81.005 of the 

Texas Alcohol ic Beverage Code (Code) (items 6 and 7 below) w . jointly held with several other 

dockets involving common issues offact concerning the alleged violations referred to ge erally as 

"p iace or manner" and common nuisance allegations. The joint hearing on place or manner and 

common nuisance allegations convened at the 1. Eric Jonson Central Library, J515 Young Street , 

Dallas, Texas 75201, on April 27, 28 and 29. 2009, and August 17, 18, and 19,2009. Additional 
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alleged violations specific to the Respond nt (items 1 rhrou h 6 an 8 bel w) were heard on October 

28, 2009 at the State O ffice of Administrative H rings, J Forest Park Road, Dal las, Texas 

75235 . A11 of the hearings were before Adrninistrati e I Jud e (ALJ) Richard R. Wilfong. TABC 

Staff was represented by attorneys Emily Helm and Judith Kennison. Re spond nt ap peared by 

attorney Timothy Griffith. Fo llowin the hearing , the parties su bmitted itten closing arguments 

and reply briefs. The record closed on December 3D, 2009. 

n. ALLEG TIONS . 'D LEGAL STA. DARnj 

In its Notice of Hearing, Staff made the following all egation : 

I .	 On or about epternber .2008. Respondent or Respondent ' agen t, servant or employ , 
with criminal negl igence, permitted minor, Gabri II Lin San hez age 16 to possess or 
consume an alcoholic beverage in violation of § 106. 13 of the Code. 

2.	 On or about September 6,2008, Respond nt or Respondent's 3 ent, servant, Or em ployee, 
with crimina l negligence, sold. s rved, dispensed, or deiive alcoholic bey rage to a 
minor, Gabriella Lin Sanchez age 16 in violation of § 106. 1 of the Code. 

3.	 On or abo t Sep tember 6, 2008, Respondent, or R s ndent's 8 ent, servant, or employee,
 
with criminal negligence. sold, rved, di pensed, or delivered an alcoholic beverage to a
 
minor, Marcos Miguel Muniz-Alvarez age 19 in iolation of § 106. 13 of the Code.
 

4.	 On Or about October 25, 2008. Respondent, or R spondent' age nt, s ant, or em ployee, 
with criminal negligence, permitted a minor, Robert t05 Echererria Zelaya age 19 to 
possess or consume an alcoholic beverage in violati n of § 106. IJ of the Code. 

5.	 On or about October 25, 2008, R sp ndent, or Resp ndent ' en t, servant, or employee, 
Mari a Carmen Delgado so licited or p rmitted solicitation of a person to buy drinks for 
consumption by Respondent or any of Respondent 's employees in violation of § 
11.6 I(b)(2 and 104.0I(4) o f th Code. 

6.	 On or about September 20,2007, through December 15 200 . the place or manner in wh ich 
Respondent, or Respondent's agent, servant, or employee conducted its business w nts [he 
cancellation or suspens ion of the permit based 00 the general welfare. h lth, peace, mo rals 
and safety of the peo ple and on the public sense of decency, in vio lation of § 11.61 (b)( 7) of 
the Code. 
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7.	 On or a out September 20, 2007, through Decem ber 15, 2008. Respondent or Respondent's 
agent, servan t, or em ployee used or al lowed others to use the perm itted premises in a manner 
that consti tu tes a common nuisance as defined in • 81. 001 of the Cod and in violation of 
§ 81.005 of the Code . 

8.	 On or about D cernber 1J, 2008, Rcspon nt, or Re pendent'sa ent, servant, or employee, 
sol d, served, or deli vered an alcoholic beverage to an into xic ated person in violation of 
§ 11.61(b)(14) of the Code. 

A person acts with criminal negligence under the Code if: 

with respect to circumstances surrounding his conduct or the resul t of his 
conduct when he ought to beaware of a sub tanti and unjus tifiable risk that 
the circumstances exist or the result \ ill occur. The risk musebe f such a 
nature and degree that the failure to perceive it constitutes a gross deviation 
from the standard ofcare thaI an ordinary person wou ld exercise under all e 
circ umstances as viewed from the ctor' standpoint. J 

III. SUMMARY OF EYIDEI CE PRESE ED AND A 'AL SIS 

At the joint hearings on place or manner and comm on nuisance allegations (items 6 and 7 

above) Staffpresented th testimony of 13 witnesses: nine members ofth Dallas Police D partment 

and four TABC empl yee . Staff offered 12 exhibits. 9 of which were admi tted. Respondents 

collectively presented eight witnesses and offered seven exhibits th t were adm itted, 

At the hearing on alleged violations specific to El Jardin items 1 through 5 and 8 above), 

Staff presented the testimony of two \ itnesse and offered thre exhiblts hat ere admitted. 

Respondent presented the test imony ofone witness and offered three exhibits that were adm itted. 

The following is summary of theevidence presented concerning the aJ leged violations and 

the AU's analysis: 

t This definition is the Penal Code definidon of criminal negligence on which the Code § LOg relies. 
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A.	 September 6, _008 - Aile tioo (I. 2, and J Jr I Respondent or its Ag nt, Se n " nt nr 
E mploy • with Cri mina l Ne Ii ence, Permitted ~finor to Po.. es or on ume . 
Alcoholic Beverage ndJor Sold, erved, or Delive red n . I(abo lic Beve e to a 
M in or. 

1.	 Evidence: 

On Septem ber 6, 2008, TARe enforcement agent Victor Bu los, accompanied by Dallas 

Police Department vice detective Swint. conducted an undercover operation at £ 1 Jardin at 

approximately j ; I0 a.m. Mr. Bulos observed a female that appeared very youthful inappearance and 

demeanor. She was at a table near the dance floor with four males and was doing what a fichera 

would do. 2 Mr. Bulos then observed h r recei ve money from one ofthe males and proceed to the bar 

and purchase five 12 OUI e Bud Light beers from Sandra Vidal the bartender. She then returned to 

the table and placed a beer in front of each m le. After cleari ng empty bo ttles from the table, she 

returned to the table and began drinking the fifth r that she b d purchased . Mr. Bulos 

subsequently determined that the female \ 'as Gabrie lla nchez and she was only 16 years ofage.~ 

Gabriella Sanchez's mother, Roberta Meza, was in the bar, but \ ' al busy as a fichera tending to 

another table ofmen on the opposite side of the dance floor.' 

Mr. Bulos also observed another table where four youthful appearing males were sitting, He 

saw Lucinda Melo performing waitress duti in that vicinity of the b .c' and he saw her app roach 

the table where the four males were sining. She took their order for four beers, obtained the four 

beers from the bartender, Sandra Vidales, and served the beer to th four patro ns." Mr. Bulos 

2 "fichera" ISB nickname given to female employees at a Hispanic bar !JUll serve as waitress and accompany or 
befr iend male patrons by dancing with [hem. etc. 

) Tr . 142.1-1425 and 1442- 1443. 

• Tr. [42 5.
 

s Tr, 1436-1438.
 

e Tr , 1441.
 

7 Tr . 1427.
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observed one of the youths, Marcos Miguel Muniz-Alvarez,consume the beer and a shot of'tequila.! 

Mr. Bulos subsequen tly determined th t ~fr. Mun iz-A lv rez \ as only 19 years of age." 

According [0 Leticia , onn Munoz. th so l owner 0 EIJardin, Lucind Melo was not her 

employee. She claimed that she never: ( I) compensated her; (2) supervised or direc ted her; 

(3) authorized her to conduct any business for her; (4) sch duled her to ' vork; (5) authorized or 

required her to render any type of acc ounting ' or (6) reserved any right to supervise her. 10 She stated 

that she w at the bar the nigh t of September 6, ~ OO ,and she did not see any youthful appearing 

female purchase alcohol from th bartender.l ' She also id Ih ( she does not allow mino 10 

consume or pos sess alcohol, and she h no idea how the alleged minor could have obtained alcohol 

ifshe possessed it. She did not dispute that Sandra Vidales was employed by her as the bartender. 

2. Analysis 

The undisputed evidence establishes th t on Septem ber 6.2008: (1) Gabriell Sanchez was 

16 years old; she took beer orde from patrons; received money from patrons to purchase beer; 

purchased beer from the bart nder Sandra Vidales; served the beer to the patrons an kept one for 

herself which she consumed ; and (2) Lucind M 10 was p rforming wai ess dut ies; she wai ted on a 

table of male patrons y tak ing their order for beer, obtained the beer fro m the barte nder Sandra 

Vidales, and served the be r to the patrons. One of the patrons served by . Melo w Marcos 0 

Miguel Muniz-Alvarez a minor 19 years old who cons rmed the beer and a. shot of tequila 

With respect to Ga bri 11 S nchez, Respondent attemp ted to avoid or mitigate the allegations 

on two grounds : (I) that the minor was in the visi ble pres nee of he r mother; therefore, no violation 

s Tr. 1429.
 

9 Tr. J430; 14]].
 

10 Tr. 1501-1502
 

J 1 Id. 
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occurred pursuant to § 106.05(b)(2) of the Code; and (2) that Pet itioner failed to prove that the 

Respondent had knowledge of or permitted the al leg d sale; ther fore , the mit igation provi ions of 

§ 106.13(c)(3) of the Co de apply. Regarding the R spondent's conten tion that Gabriell Sanchez 

was in the visibl e presence of her mother. according to the und isputed testimony of Mr. Bulos, 

Ms. Sanchez's mother was bus)' as tichera attendi ng ano ther table of men on the other side of the 

dance floor . Moreover. considering tha t Gabriella Sanchez was only a l o-year-o ld girl . a much 

higher level of observa tion and attention by the pare nt is warranted and should be required for the 

sale to a minor to be permissible under th se circumst ces, Thus, the ALl finds based on the 

preponderance of the vidence that Gabrie ll Sanc hez was not in the visib le presence of her adult 

parent as contemplated by § 106.05(b)(2) of the Code. and lhe all goo violation of § 106. 13 of the 

Code concerning Gabrie l! Sanchez was proved by a preponderance of the evidence. Regarding the 

Respondent's contention that Petitioner fai led to pro e that Res pondent knew of or permitted the 

alleged sale to a minor, me ALJ finds that the Respondent, not the Petitioner, bears the burden of 

proving that an employee, servant, or agent violated the Code with out R sponden t' s knowledge or 

permission and Respondent failed to do so . On the contrary , Respondent testified that site was 

present at the bar the night ofSeptember 6, _008. She also testi fied that she does not check ill when 

the bartender is there - that is the responsibility ofthe bartender. Th re were no polici po sted wi th 

regard to not serving minors. Thus ba d on the preponderance of the evidence the AU finds that 

Respondent failed to prove that she met the cri teria for mi tigat ion under § 106. 13(c)(3) of the Code. 

With respect to Marcos Miguel Muniz-Alvarez, Respondent attempt to avoid responsibility 

only by claiming that Lucinda Melo, the person who served beer to Mr. Iuniz-Alvarez, was not 

Respondent's agen t, servant . or employee. Re po cnr' only evid nee that I f . Melo was not her 

employee, agent or servant was Respondent ' 5 testimony that she did nOI pay, superv ise, authorize, or 

obtain an accounting from Ms. Melo. 

The Code d~es not define the term "employee." In Ackley II. Stale. 592 S.W. 2d 606, 608 

(Tex . Crim. App. 1980). the Texas Co urt of Criminal Appeals de fined "employee" as "a person who 

works for another in return for financial or other consi dera tion.' The co urt stated that the test for 
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determining whether one person is another person ' s employee is whe ther the person is subject to the 

control of the other person. 

The ALl finds it significan t that in light of Respondent's t stirnony that she at EI Jardin 

the night of Sep tember 6. 2008, she did nOI even attempt to dispute or rebut the tes timony of 

Mr. Bulos concerning the activiti s and actions of. is . Melothat h 0 rved, view of \Is.Mclo's 

undi puted performance of customary waitress duties, including clearing tabl es, gath ering and 

disposing of trash, taking beer orders from patrons, h dlin the exch nge of money for b er at the 

bar, and serv ing the bee r [0 the patrons at their tables, it isclear to the Al.J that Ms. Melo was openly 

performing the work ofa waitress that was neficiaJ to Respondent. As to whether Ms. Melo was 

working in return for financial or other consideration. he AIJ is aware ofth universal custom and 

practice for patrons of bars and resta urants to lip \ it rs and waitres . The amo unt of the tip is 

generally 15 to 20 ercent of the cOSI of the food or beverage purchased,I I As to whether Ms. Melo 

received "other cons ideration: ' that is at leas t as likely as not. It 'i ould be Illogical to conclude i1S 

Respondent urges, that Ms. Mello performed w itress duties de cribed by Mr. Bulos without 

financial reward or other onsideration, AS IO being "subject [0 the control of the other r on," th 

Respondent or her bartender could have simply required Ms. Melo to stop what she was doing. 

Notwithstanding, the app arent absence of hiring formality. by openly performing wai tress services 

with the acquiescence of the Respondent. an agent. servant. or employee relationship between 

Respondent and Ms. Melo was tacitly created. Thus. the AU finds that the Petitioner proved that 

Ms. Melo, in her capacity as Respond nr' sagent. ervant, or empl y , so ld, rved, or d livered an 

alcoholic beverage to a minor in violation of § 106.13 of the Code. 

B.	 October 2-. 1008 - All (ion (4' nd 5) ch t Re pond e • or it! A ent, Sen ' nt, or 
Employee, wit Criminal Nc-gli nee. Permitted .\-ti oor to Po. or Co n ume 
Alcoholic: eve ge, an d Solicited It Pen on to Buy Drt for Con um pfion by 
Res ondenl or R pondenr ' ! Employe . 

12 Any objection [0 this tak ing of official notice should be filed as an exce ption to this PFO. 
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I. Evidence 

On October 25, 2008, TASe enforcement agent Victor Bulo was an 0 n team member in 

an undercover operation at EI Jardin. He enter d El Jardin a approximately 10:35 p.m. and noted 

that the bar was not v ry crowded. 1Ie observed a table near the dance floor occupied by six male 

patrons. One of them w youthful in appearance and was in pas sian of and consuming a Bud 

Light beer. u Mr. Bulos also saw that the bartender, S idales, had an unobstructed view ofthe 

youth sitting at the table from about 25 feet away.14 The youth was positively identified as Robert 

Santos Echererria Zela ya and he \\0 19 years old. ' Ms. Vidal s said that the six patrons, including 

Mr. Zelaya had been sitting at the tab le for over an hour.16 r, Zelaya s id h was not asked for his 

ID and he did not possess a fake !D.J7 

Respondent testif d that sh was not at El Jardin on October _5, 2008.18 She di not deny 

that the bartender, Ms. Vidales, was her. agent. servant or employee. She offered three photographs 

that she took sometime fter October 25 and offered them for the purported purpose of showing that 

the bartender would not have had an unobstructed view of table where Mr.Zel a was seared. and to 

show that the bar was dim ly-lit, 19 Petitioner objected to the photogra hs because the Respondent 

was not at EI Jardin on Octo r 25, 2008, and the photographs v re not taken on that date. The 

photographs were admitted for the limi ted purpose of indicating the gen raj arrangement ofthe bar. 

I) Tr. 1447-1448. 

[( Tr. 1449-1450. 

n Tr. l 450. 

l6 Tr, 1454 . 

11 TI". /454; 1458 . 

1& Tr. 1505.
 

19Tr. 1506.)510; Responden t's Spec. Aleg. xs. t , 2. and J .
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2.	 Ana . is 

The ALl found the testimony ofMr, Bulos to be very credible and persuasive. B, d on the 

preponderance ofthe evidence the AU is rsuaded th [the bar was not crowded on e evening of 

October 25,2008; the bar was well-lit; and, the bartender h d clear view of Mr. Zelaya as he sat at 

a table for over an hour in the possession ofand consum ing beer. Thus the ALl concludes that the 

Petitioner pro ved th I on September 25, 2008, Respondent 's gent, servant or employee, with 

criminal negligence, perm itted a minor. Robert Santos Echererria lei ya age 19, 10 possess or 

consume an alcoholic beverage in violation of § 106.13 of the Code. 

Allegation (5) pertain ing to Maria Carmen Delgado, alleging that Respon cot violated 

§§ 11.62(b)(2) and 104.01(4) of the Co , was di mis ed by Petitioner on the record of this 

proceeding.20 

C.	 December 13, 200 - Al eg: lion (8) thaI Re pendent, or h r A ent, en' Df or 
Employee, old, Served or Deliv r D Alco olle B n e to Intoxicated Po. 

1.	 Evid Dee 

On Dec mber 13. 2008. TABC enforcement agents Gilbert Alba and David Salazar, 

conducted an undercover operation at EJ Jardin. Mr. Alb testified that he an Mr. Salazar entered 

the bar a little after midnl t and t at a table near the dance floor. Theyobserved a man bump into 

an empty chair as he walked from the dance floor so they continu d 10 m nitor him.21 Ali the man 

wa lked toward the bar the female he was walking with was helping [0 steady him. When she let go 

he had difficulty walking without assistance ;U1d was staggering. According to Mr. Alba, it was 

apparent that the man did not have all of his gross motor skills.22 After the man got to the ar he 

~o Tr . 1445.
 

~ I Tr. 1460,
 

11 Tr. 1461.
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stood leaning agai ns t the bar. W ithi n appro imat Iy 30 seconds the man lean ed forward like he was 

falling asleep . Even whil e he leane a ainst the bar he had difficulty m intaini ng his balance. The 

bartender approached the man and it 3PP ared that sh was trying to take his order, but \ having 

difficulty doing that. The bartender tried talking to the man several times.2J Then, the female 

accompanying the man leaned forward and spoke to he bartender. It appeared to Mr. Alba that the 

female companion ga e the order to the bartender, "The bartender then served the man a 12-ounce 

Corona beer and serv ed his female companion Bud Light. 24 The man exhibited difficulty finding 

and retrieving his wallet, and getting the money out to pay for the beer.2S A! that point the undercover 

agents contacted the open ag nts who entered EI Jardin and took the man outside . After determining 

that the man was intoxicated the bartender, laura Virginia Alvarez, was charged with sale of alcohol 

to an intoxicated person. Ms. Alvarez subsequ ntly convict oflhe criminalcharg .26 Certified 

copies of the court docurnen in the crimin case ~ere admitted as evid ce. 27 

Respondent testi fied that she was no t at EI J rdin he night of December 13, 2008.21 

However, she said that the man was with his w ife, and his wife was her friend. Th erefore , he knew 

that the bartender so ld 10 the man's wife and nor to the man.l9 She also, testified that the man's wife 

told her that her husband was Ire dy intoxicated befor he came to E l Jardin, She furth er claimed 

that the man did not drink any beer While he \\ at 81Jardin. He n t served by the bartender. 

only his wife was sold a drink. JO Respondent did not di pute that the bartender. Ms. Alvarez. her 

agent, servant, or ernplo ee. 

D Tr. 1461-1463. 

2( Tr. 1463. 

13 Tr. J464. 

26 Tr. 1466-1468;TABCEx. r. 

27 TA8e Ex l. 

21 Tr. 1502. 

; 9 Tr. J 502- 1503. 

JOTr. J504·1505 . 
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2.	 Analy is 

The AU found he testimony of Mr. Alba to be very credible d persuasive in contrast with 

the Respondent's te tirnony that the AU found to be sel f-serving hearsa lacking credib ility. Thus, 

the AU finds that the preponderance of the evidence proved that: ( 1) the man was at EJ Jardin the 

night of December 13, 2008: (2) R pe ndent w not present; (3) the man was obviously and 

unmistakably intoxicat sd ; (4) the man's stale of intoxication was openly and unmi stakably apparent 

to Ms. Alvarez, the bartend r; (4) Ms. Alvarez served the intoxicated man a bottle of Co rona beer; 

(5) Ms. Alvarez was tried and found gui lty of sell ing alcohol to this intoxicated person; and (6) 

Ms. Alvarez was the Re pond nt's agent servant, or employee. Thus the AU con ludes that the 

Petitioner proved by a pr pond ranee of the evidence th I on 0 cern er 13. 2008, Respondent's 

agent, servant, or employee. sold, served, or de live d, an alcoholic beverage to an intoxicated 

person in violation of § 11.61(bX14) of the Code. 

D.	 September 20, 2 07 through December 15,20 8 - All odo (6 nd 7) th t t e PI ce or 
M nner R pondent Conducted Bu i es Offended t e General W lfl H J P ceo, 
Mor I II d S fcty of the Peep e ad th P bUe e olD Dey. nd/o r Co ti 1u f • 
Comm on Nn nee. 

1.	 Ev id Dee 

The evidence w e. tensi ve CODe ming the allegations that Respondent, et al, cond ucted
 

business in a place or manner th t offended the g neral welfare, health , peace, morals and afety of
 

the people and the public sense of decency, and/or constitutes a common nuisance.
 

EI Jardin is among a cluster of bars and other businesses located in close prox imity to each 

other in a "U" shaped strip center locate at 2900 Walnut IJill L e in Dallas, Texas. The bars are 

not assigned designated parking for use by their patrons; rather, they share a large common parking 

area. 3 1 The common parking area is exclu sively contro lled and mainta ined by the owner of the 

) I Due to the uniqueness of the configuration and proximity ofthe b rs, a phoro(Exhibit 10)showing the layout 
is attached. 
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property rather than the individual bar owners who lease he ir bar locations from the owner of the 

property . 

The barowners, including Respon ent, did not cli. putemecriminal activity, but claimed they 

were not responsible for it since in occurred in th common parking a exclusively contro lled and 

maintained by theproperty owner.Moreover, theyadamantJy argued that they cann t be held legally 

responsible for criminal a tivity in the common par ing area outside their bars because that is not 

part of their "licensed premises." 

., 
~. 

In view of the AU's findings and conclusions regarding the specific al l ations (items 1 

through 5 and 8 abo ve), and the recommendation be low th t Respond I' S permits be cancelJed 

based on thos e violations, the AU concludes th t it is unnecessary to further address the place or 

manner and comm on nuisance allegations. 

IV. RECOM D D CfIO S 

The Commission h adopted a Sf ndard PenaltyChan which sets forth suggested sanctions 

for the Commiss ion ' 5 agents, co mpliance officers or om r rsonn I to use wh ettlin 

cases prior to a heari ng.J2 The sugges ted s c tions bin n ith an nor the Commission and 

deviations from the chart are permitted if there are aggrav tin or miti ating circumstances. 

Although the Standard Penal ty Chart is not binding, it does provide some guidance in 

considering a pen alty. And based on the Schedule of Sanctions and Penalties for Health, Safety and 

Welfare Violations, the AU agrees wi th 51 tIS reccrnmen arion for perm it cancellation. The AU 

finds that the freq uency and gravi ty of Responden t 's violations, and the repetition of the same types 

11 16 Tex . Adm in. Code (TAC) § 37. ·0(3). 
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of violations, over a relatively short period of lime i indeed cause for concern andjusr ific tion for 

aggressive acnon." The pattern exhibits careless indiffere nce to violations of the law and a lackof 

diligence to prevent the violalions. Additionally, the evidence does not inspire any confidence that 

Respondent is capable or of mind to adequately eve e rhe operari n of the licensed prem ises as 

required by law and ina manner that would prevent viola tions that threatenpublic health, safety, and 

welfare from occurring in the future. Accordingly, based on the: totality of the evidence and for the 

reasons staled, the AU rccomm nds cancellation of Respondent' s permi ts. 

VI. FI DINGS OF FACf 

I .	 Leticia Norma Munozd/b/a El Jardin Billiards & Grills (Respondent) is the hold ofMixed 
Beverage, Mixed Beverage Late Hours and Beve ge Carta p nnits issued by the Texas 
Alcoholic Be erage Commission (TABC) for the premises locatedat 2900 Walnut Hill Lane, 
Dallas, Dallas County, Texas (licensed premises . 

2.	 Leticia Nanna Munoz is the sole owner of Respondent. 

3.	 On February 5, 2009. TABe Staff' (Staff) sent 11 lotice of Hearing to Respondent. 

4.	 The Notice of Hearing contained S tementofthe tim date, 10 don, and thenatureof the 
hearing; a statementof the legal authority ndjurisdic ion nder which tl e he..aring to be 
held; referenceto the particul seed ns of the statutesand rules involved; and a shortplain 
statement of the allegations and the relief sought by th TABC. 

5.	 On April l ? 28. and 29, August 17, 18, an 19, an 0 tober 28,2009, public hearings were
 
he ld at the J. Eric Jonson Central Library d theState Office ofAdministrative Hearings in
 
Dallas, Dallas County, Tex . before Administrative Law Jud ge Ri hard R. Wilfon (AU).
 
Staff appeared through attorneys Emily H Irn and Judith Kenni on. Respondent peared
 
through attorney Timothy Griffith. The presentation of evidenc concluded on October 28,
 
2009, but the drninistrative record remained open until Decem r 30.2009, to allow the
 
parties to submit closing arguments and reply briefs as ord red b)" rhe ALl.
 

6.	 On September 6, 2008, TABC enforcement agen; ictor Bulo and DaJJas PoliceDepartment
 
vice detective Swint participated in an undercover operation at the permitted pr rnises.
 

)] TABC Ex. 2-E. This exhiblr wasadmitted without object on April 27. 2009.lhe first day of the joint hearing. 
See Tr. 1J. 
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7. On September 6, 2008, enforcement agent Bulos and detective Swint observed Gabriella Lin 
Sanchez receive mon y from on offour men at u ble and thenpurchase fi e beers fromthe 
bart ender, Sandra Vid les, at the b . Ms. ch z then served one ofthe beers to each ofthe 
four men and kept one to hersel f which she consumed. 

8. On Seplember 6, 2008. Gabriella Lin Sanchez was 16 years ofage and was very youthfu l in 
appe arance and demeanor. 

9. On Sep tember 6,2008, Gabriella Lin Sanch z 's mother, Roberta Meza, was at the licensed 
premises, but was on th opposite ide of th dance floor t nding to another table of men. 

10. On September 6, 2008, Gabriel! 
Roberta Meza. 

Lin Sanchez was not in the isual presence ofh r mo th 

11. On September 6, 200 and Vidales was employed by Respondent as a ender. 

12. On September 6.2008, enforce ent ent BuJos nod detective win t also observ ed Lucinda 
Mel0, who was performin waitre duties. She approa bed t hie of fo ur youthful 
appearing males and took their ord r for beer. h then pure the beer from the bartender 
at the bar and ervc the beer 10 the four males . One of the mules, Marcos Mi guel Muniz­
Alvarez, consumed the beer d a shot of tequila. 

J 3. On September 6, 2008. Marcos Miguel Muniz-Alvarez w 19 years of age. 

!4. On September 6,2008, Lucinda Mel '0\0"8.5 the R spondem's ent, servant or employee. 

! 5. On Octo ber 25, 200 , TABC enforcement agent Bulos participated in 
ope ration at the licensed p mises. 

an undercover 

! 6. On October 25, 2008, enforcement a ent Bulo observed 
Santos Echererria lei ya, in possession of and consumin 

youthfuJappearing male, Robert 
beer. 

17. On October 25, :W08, the bartender, Sandra Vidales, was the Respondent 's employee. 

J8. On October 25, 2008. the- licensed premises was wel l- lit nd the bartender, Ms. Vidales, had 
a clear and uno bstructed view of Robe rt Santos E h rerria Zelaya as he possessed and 
consumer beer. 

] 9. On December 13. 2008, TABC enforcement agent Gilbert Alba and 
conducted an underco er operation at the licensed premises. 

David Salazar, 

20 . On December 1J. 200 8, enforcement agents A lba and Sa13ZlU' observed Respondent's 
bartender, Laura Virginia Alvarez, serve r to a man who was intoxica ted. 
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21.	 Respondent con oncd violations of [he T~:< Alcoholic Be era e Code (Code) by her 
agents, servants or employees. 

22.	 Re pe ndent failed [ 0 usc due dili gence [ 0 prevent violations of the Code. 

23 . Res ndent has not taken any signi ficant tep 0 prevent violation f the Code rom 
occurring in he future . 

• CO ct,u IONS OF L. W 

I.	 TABC has jurisdiction over this m tterpursuantto TEX. ALec.BEY. CODE ANN. Subchapt r 
B of Chapter 5, and §§ 6.01 an 11:61. 

2.	 The State Office of Adrnini trative Hearin has jurisdiction ov T matters r Jated to the 
hearing in his proceeding, including the authority [0 issu n proposal for d c is ion with 
proposed findi ngs of fact and conclusions of law, pursuant to EX. GOV'T CODE ANN. 
ch.2003. 

3.	 Pro per and timely notice of the h arin w provided as required under the Administrative 
Procedure Act, TEX. GOV'T CODEANN. § 200 1.05 1 nd _00 t .052; TEX. A tco , BEV. CODE 

ANN. § 11.63; d I TEx. DMIN. CODE (TAe) § 155.401. 

4.	 Respondent implicitly encouraged her employees to violate th law. 16 TAC § 50. 1Oed). 

5.	 Based on the above Findingsof Fact, on September 6,2008, Respondent or espondent 's
 
agent, servant or employee, with criminal ne Ii ence, permitte a minor to possess and
 
cons um e an alcoholic beverage in violation ofTEx. ALeD. BEV. CODE A: . § 106.1 3.
 

6.	 Based on the above Finding of Fact, on eptember 6, 2008, Respondent or espondeni's 
age nt, servant or employee, with criminal n Ii ence, sold, served di p nsed, or deliver 
an alcoholic beverage to a minor in vio la tion of TEX. ALeD. BEV. CODE ANN. § 106.13. 

7.	 Based on the abo ve Findings of Fact. on September 6, 2008. the minor was not in the visible 
presence of her adult parent, guardian or spou . TE.x. . LCD. BE . CODEM'N, § 106.05 2). 

8.	 Based on the above Findings of Fact, on October 25, 2008, Respondent or Respondent' s 
agent, servan t or employee. with criminal negligence, permi tted a mino r to possess and 
con sume an alcoholic verage in viol tion of TEX. Atco. BEV. CODE Al . § 106. 13. 
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9.	 Based on the above Findings of Fact, on Decem r 13 2008, Respondent or R .spondenr's 
age nt, serv nt or employee sold, served, or delivered an alcoho lic beverage (0 an intoxicated 
person in violation of Tex. A LeD. BEV. C ODe AN • § 11.6 1(b ' 14). 

10.	 Based on the above Findin o f Fact, the Respondent f iled 10 exercise due dili gence 10 

prevent the violations . TEX. A LCO. Bsv, CODE ANN. § 106. 13 c (I). 

1L	 Based on the bove Findin of F t and Conclusions of Law, th Respondent 's permits 
should becancelled pursuant to T EX. Ai.co, BEV. CODE A.\lN. §§ 11.6 1 and 106. 13. 

SIGNED Febru ry 9, 2010. 

RICHARD R. WlLFO G 
AD L~TRATIVE LAW JU DG 

ATE OF I OF D I STRATIV HEARINGS 


